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To,

The Members, 

Sundaram Fund Services Limited, 

CIN: U67120TN2008PLC068388 

Your directors have pleasure in presenting the Seventeenth Annual 

Report on the business and performance of the Company together 

with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2025.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Rs in Lakhs)

Particular
For the financial 

year ended  
March 31, 2025

For the financial 
year ended 

March 31, 2024

Income 13.80 128.93

Less: Expenses (12.00) (102.53)

Profit/ (Loss) before tax 1.80 26.40

Less: Tax Expense / 

(reversal)

(1.41) (2.03)

Profit after Tax 3.20 28.43

APPROPRIATION
(Rs in Lakhs)

Interim Dividend - -

Final Dividend - -

Tax on distribution of 
dividend

- -

Transfer of General 
Reserve

- -

Balance carried to 
Balance sheet

3.20 26.16

17th DIRECTORS’ REPORT

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS:

During the year under review, your Company earned an income 

of Rs.13.8 lakhs. Total expenditure, including tax provisions,  

amounted to Rs.12 lakhs. The Company recorded a net  

profit of Rs.3.2 lakhs.

SHARE CAPITAL

The current authorized share capital of the Company stands at 

5,00,00,000 equity shares of Rs. 10/- each.

REDUCTION OF SHARE CAPITAL

Pursuant to the National Company Law Tribunal, Chennai Order 

dated 14th November 2024, the Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up 

Equity Share Capital of the Company has been reduced from Rs. 

45,00,30,000/- (4,50,03,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each) to 

Rs.1,50,30,000/- (15,03,000 equity shares of Rs.10/- each). The 

reduced capital amounting to Rs. 43,50,00,000/- has been adjusted 

and written off against the negative balance of retained earnings 

(accumulated losses) of the Company, thereby improving the financial 

position of the Company.

DIRECTORS/ KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

The Board of Directors of the company is vested with general power 

of superintendence, direction, and management of the affairs of the 

Company. The Board of Directors monitor and review the functioning 

of the Company. there were changes in the composition of the Board 

and Key Managerial Personnel.

Mr. Sunil Subramaniam, Director, resigned effective from 25th June 

2024. 

Further, Ms. Srilakshmi Balachandran (Company Secretary), 

Mr. Lakhmi Narasimhan (Chief Financial Officer), and Mr. C. M. 

Loganathan (Managing Director) of the Company resigned from their 

respective positions effective from 10th December 2024.
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However, Mr. C.M.Loganathan continues to serve on the Board as 

non-executive director of the Company.

On the date of the report, the Board consists of 3 Members as follows:

Name of Director Current Position per Company law 

Mr. C.M. Loganathan Non-Executive Director

Mr. R Ajith Kumar Non-Executive Director 

Mr. R. S. Raghunathan Non-Executive Director 

Mr. R Ajith Kumar, Director, retires by rotation by drawing lots at the 

ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself 

for re-appointment. The Board recommends his re-appointment for 

your approval.

DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR:

The provisions section 149(4) as per Companies Act, 2013 for 

appointing an Independent Director is not applicable to the Company.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In terms of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, in relation 

to the audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 

March 31, 2025, the Board of Directors hereby confirms that:

 a	� In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable 

accounting standards had been followed along with proper 

explanation relating to material departures.

b	� Such accounting policies have been selected and applied 

consistently and the Directors made judgments and estimates 

that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair 

view of the state of affairs of the Company as of March 31, 2025 

and of the profit/loss of the Company for that year; 

c	� Proper and sufficient care was taken for the maintenance of 

adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 

of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 

preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

d	� The annual accounts of the Company have been prepared on 

a going concern basis;	

e	�  Proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with 

the provisions of all applicable laws   and that such systems 

were adequate and operating effectively.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL

Your Company’s Internal Control Systems are generally found 

commensurate with the nature, size and complexity of its business and 

ensure proper safeguarding of assets, maintaining proper accounting 

records and providing reliable financial information. 

BOARD MEETINGS

During the Financial Year 2024-25, 7 meetings of Board of Directors 

were held on 13th May 2024, 25th June 2024, 25th July 2024, 

23rd October 2024, 27th November 2024, 10th December 2024,  

27th January 2025.

Attendance of the director at the Board Meetings during the year ended 

March 31, 2025 is as follows:

Name of the director No. of Board 
meeting eligible 

to attend

No. of board 
meetings 
attended

Mr. C.M. Loganathan 7 7

Mr. Sunil Subramaniam 2 2

Mr. R Ajith Kumar 7 7

Mr. R. S. Raghunathan 7 7

AUDIT COMMITTEE

During the Financial Year 2024 – 25, the Company was not required 

to constitute an Audit Committee of the Board as per Section 177 of 

the Companies Act, 2013.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

During the Financial Year 2024 - 25, the Company was not required 

to constitute a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board 

as per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.
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STATUTORY AUDITORS

M/s. N.C. Rajagopal & Co., Chartered Accountants, Chennai 

(Registration Number No.003398S), are Statutory Auditors of your 

Company, who will hold office till the conclusion of 20th Annual 

General Meeting. The Company has received a certificate under section 

141 of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules issued thereunder.

PUBLIC DEPOSITS

During the Financial Year 2024 – 25, the Company did not accept 

any fixed deposits under the applicable provisions of the Companies 

Act, 2013.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The Auditors’ Report to the Members on the Final Accounts of the 

Company for the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2025 does not 

contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.

FRAUD REPORTING BY AUDITOR OTHER THAN THOSE 

WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL GOVERNMENT

There was no reporting of fraud by the Auditor of the Company under 

Sub-Section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013.

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

In compliance with section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read 

with Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) 

Rules, 2014, an extract of Annual Return in MGT-9 forms part of this 

Report annexed as Annexure I. 

PERSONNEL

As of March 31, 2025, there are no employees registered under payroll.

ST	 ATEMENT OF SUBSIDIARY COMPANIES, JOINT 

VENTURES AND ASSOCIATES

	

Your Company has no subsidiary, joint ventures or associates and 

hence the statement to be annexed pursuant to Section 129 of 

Companies Act, 2013 is not applicable. 

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The transactions with related parties are subject to the applicable 

provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and are entered into with the 

approval of the Board of Directors and shareholders (wherever 

applicable).

The transactions entered into with the related parties during the 

Financial Year 2024-25 are stated under ‘Notes to the Accounts’ in 

the Audited Financial Statements of the Company.

LOANS, GUARANTEES, INVESTMENTS AND SECURITIES

The Company has not given any Loans, Guarantee, provided Securities 

or made any investments under the provisions of Section 186 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 during the year.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SECTION 22 OF THE SEXUAL 

HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, 

PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The requirement of having Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013, is not applicable 

to the Company.

COMPANIES DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS PURSUANT TO 

SECTION 134 (3) (m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 IS AS 

UNDER:

(A)	 Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outflow: 

	� During the Financial Year 2024-25, there were no foreign 

exchange earnings and outflow.

(B)	 Conservation of Energy & Technology Absorption:

	� The Company constantly endeavors to conserve energy and to 

improve upon the existing technology to meet global standards 

and adopt the best available technology for servicing customers.  

DIVIDEND 

The Board of Directors do not recommend any dividend for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2025.
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TRANSFER TO RESERVES

An amount for Rs.3.2 lakhs is proposed to be transferred to the 

reserves of the Company for FY 2024-25.

COMPLAINCE WITH SECRETERIAL STANDARDS

During the Financial Year 2024-25, the company has complied with 

the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of the 

Company Secretaries of India in terms of the Act and approved by 

Central Government.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING 

THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED 

BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR TO WHICH 

THESE FINANCIALS STATEMENTS RELATE AND THE DATE OF 

THE REPORT:

There were no material changes and commitments affecting the 

financial position of the Company have occurred between the end of 

the financial year of the Company to which the financial statements 

relate and the date of this report. 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE 

REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE 

GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY OPERATIONS IN 

FUTURE

There are no significant and material orders passed by the regulators 

or Courts or tribunals impacting the going concern status and Company 

operations in future.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board of Directors take this opportunity to thank the customers, 

shareholders, suppliers, bankers, business partners/associates, 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs, financial institutions and Central and 

State Governments for their consistent support and encouragement 

to the Company. 

 

 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board of 

Sundaram Fund Services Limited

R.S Raghunathan             			   Ajith Kumar 

Director            	 Director                               

DIN: 09650827             	 DIN:  07709222

 

Date: 6th May 2025                 	 Date: 6th May 2025   

Place:  Chennai                   	 Place: Chennai                     

 

 

Registered Office

21, Patullos Road, Chennai - 600002

CIN: U67120TN2008PLC068388
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Annexure I

FORM NO. MGT-9

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN AS ON  
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON MARCH 31, 2025

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.	 REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS

CIN U67120TN2008PLC068388

Registration Date 27.06.2008

Name of the Company Sundaram Fund Services Limited

Category / Sub-Category of the Company Category: Company Limited by Shares 

Sub - Category : Indian Non-Government Company

Address of the Registered office and 

contact details

21, Patullos Road, Chennai - 600002 

Contact No.: 044 - 28569900

Whether listed compan No

Name, Address and Contact details of 

Registrar and Transfer Agent,  

if any:

Cameo Corporate Services Limited 

Address: Subramanian Building, 1, Club House Road,  

Anna Salai, Royapettah, Chennai, Tamil Nadu 600002 

Contact: 044 4002 0700

II.	 PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

	 All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be stated:-

Sl. 

No

Name & Description of main products 

/ services
NIC Code of the product / service % to total turnover of the company

1. Accounting, Book Keeping, and auditing 

activities

69201 100%

III.	 PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S. 

No

Name and address of the 

Company
CIN/GLN

Holding/Subsidiary/

Associate
% of shares held Applicable Section

1 Sundaram Finance Limited L65191TN1954PLC002429 Holding Company 100.00%

Section 2(46) of 

the Companies Act, 

2013.
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IV.	 SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL BREAKUP AS PERCENTAGE OF TOTAL EQUITY

(i)	 Category-wise Share Holding

Category  
of  

Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of shares held at the end of the year
% Change

during
the year      Demat Physical Total

% of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total
% of 
Total 

Shares

A.  Promoters

1)    Indian

Individual/ HUF - - - - - - - - -

Central Govt - - - - - - - - -

State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -

Bodies Corp 4,50,03,000 - 100% - 15,03,000* - 15,03,000 100% 96.66%

Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

Any other - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total(A)(1): 4,50,03,000 - 100% - 15,03,000 - 15,03,000 100% 96.66%

2)  Foreign

NRIs-Individuals - - - - - - - - -

Other Individuals - - - - - - - - -

Bodies Corp - - - - - - - - -

Banks/FI - - - - - - - - -

Any Other - - - - - - - - -

Sub total (A)(2) - - - - - - - - -

Total shareholding 
of Promoter (A) = 
(A)(1)+(A)(2)

4,50,03,000 100% - 15,03,000 - 15,03,000 100% 96.66%

B. Public 
Shareholding

1. Institutions

Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - -

Banks / FI - - - - - - - - -

Central Govt - - - - - - - - -

State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - -

Venture Capital Funds - - - - - - - - -

Insurance Companies - - - - - - - - -

FIIs - - - - - - - - -
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Category  
of  

Shareholders

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of shares held at the end of the year
% Change

during
the year      Demat Physical Total

% of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total
% of 
Total 

Shares

Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds

- - - - - - - - -

Others (specify) - - - - - - - - -

Sub-total (B)(1):- - - - - - - - - -

2.   Non-Institutions

a) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - - -

Indian - - - - - - - - -

Overseas - - - - - - - - -

b)      Individuals - - - - - - - - -

Individual 

shareholders holding 

nominal share capital 

upto Rs. 1 lakh

- - - - - - - - -

Individual 
shareholders holding 
nominal share capital 
in excess of Rs 1 lakh

- - - - - - - - -

c)              Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(2): - - - - - - - - -

Total Public 
Shareholding 
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)

- - - - - - - - -

C. �Shares held by 
Custodian for 
GDRs & ADRs

- - - - - - - - -

Grand Total 
(A+B+C)

4,50,03,000 - 100% - 15,03,000 - 15,03,000 100% 96.66%

*The share capital reduction was pursuant to the NCLT, Chennai order dated November 14, 2024.
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(ii)	 Shareholding of Promoters

Sl. 
No

Shareholder’s 
Name

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year % change in 
shareholding 

during the 
year

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

No. of Shares % of total 
Shares of the 

company

% of Shares 
Pledged / 

encumbered 
to total 
shares

1 Sundaram 
Finance Limited

4,50,03,000 100% - 15,03,000 100%  – 0%

Total 4,50,03,000 100% - 15,03,000 100% - 0%

(iii)	 Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (Please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. 
No

Shareholder’s Name and other 
particulars

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the Year

No. of shares

% of total
shares of the

Company
No. of shares

% of total
shares of the

Company

1 At the beginning of the year 4,50,03,000 100% 4,50,03,000 100%

2 At the end of the year 15,03,000 100% 15,03,000 100%

(iv)	 Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and ADRs) :

Sl. 
No

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year

Cumulative Shareholding  
during the Year

No of Shares
% of total shares 
of the company

No of Shares
% of total shares 
of the company

1 At the beginning of the year

Not applicable

2 Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the 
year specifying the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

3 At the end of the year (or on the date of separation, if 
separated during the year)
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(V) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl. 
No

For each of Directors and  
each Key Managerial Personnel

Shareholding at the beginning 
of the year

Cumulative shareholding 
during the year

No of Shares
% of total shares 
of the company

No of Shares
% of total 

shares of the 
company

1 At the beginning of the year

NIL
2 Date wise Increase / Decrease in Shareholding during the 

year specifying the reasons for increase /decrease (e.g. 
allotment / transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):

3 At the end of the year

VI.  INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding / accrued but not due for payment

Secured Loans 

excluding 

deposits

Unsecured 

Loans

Deposits Total 

Indebtedness

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year

NIL

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i + ii + iii)

Change in Indebtedness during the financial year

• Addition

• Reduction

Net Change

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year

i) Principal Amount

ii) Interest due but not paid

iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i + ii + iii)
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VI.	 REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A.	 Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager: 	

Sl. No Particulars of Remuneration Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total Amount

 1 Name -

NIL

 2 Gross salary -

a.  �Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the 

Income-tax Act, 1961

-

b.  Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 -

c.  Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) Income- tax Act, 1961 -

3 Stock Option -

4 Sweat Equity -

5 Commission 

-  as % of profit 

-  others, specify

-

6 Others, please specify -

Total (A) -

Ceiling as per the Act -

B.	 Remuneration to other directors:

Sl. 

No.
Particulars of Remuneration Name of Directors

1. Independent Directors

NOT APPLICABLE
•	 Fee for attending board and committee meetings

•	 Commission

•	 Others –

Total (1)

2. Other Non-Executive Directors

NIL

•	 Fee for attending board committee meetings

•	 Commission

•	 Others, please specify

Total (2)

Total (B)=(1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Overall Ceiling as per the Act -
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C.	  Remuneration to key Managerial Personnel other than MD / Manager / WTD

Sl. 

No
Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CS CFO Total

1 Gross Salary  –    –    –   

(a) �Salary as per provisions contained in Section 17(1) of the 

Income Tax Act, 1961

 –    –    –   

(b) �Value of Perquisites u/s 17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 1961  –    –    –   

(c) �Profits in lieu of salary under Section 17(3) of the Income tax 

Act, 1961

 –  –  – 

2 Stock Option  –  –  – 

3 Sweat Equity  –  –  – 

4 Commission

- as % of Profits  –  –  – 

- Others, specify  –  –  – 

5 Others, please specify  –  –  – 

Total  –  –  – 

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES: NIL

Type Section of the 
Companies 

Act

Brief 
Description

Details of Penalty / 
Punishment / Compounding 

fees imposed

Authority 
[RD / NCLT/ 

COURT]

Appeal made, 
if any (give 

Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty

NilPunishment

Compounding

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty

NilPunishment

Compounding

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT

Penalty

NilPunishment

Compounding

For and on behalf of the Board of  
Sundaram Fund Services Limited

R.S Raghunathan                     	  Ajith Kumar             
Managing Director            	 Director                               
DIN: 09650827                  	 DIN:  07709222                    

Date: 6th May 2025                	 Date: 6th May 2025 
Place:  Chennai                   	 Place: Chennai                     

Registered Office
21, Patullos Road, Chennai – 600002
CIN: U67120TN2008PLC068388
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To

The Members

Sundaram Fund Services Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

1.	 Opinion

	� �We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements 

of Sundaram Fund Services Limited(“the company”), which 

comprises the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, and the 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including the Statement of Other 

Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity, 

the Statement of Cash flows for the year ended, and notes 

to financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

	�� In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 

to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial 

statements give the information required by the Act in the 

manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity 

with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of 

the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, and 

profit, changes in equity  and its cash flows for the year ended 

on that date.

2.	 Basis for Opinion

	� We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards 

on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the 

Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those 

Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 

for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. 

We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 

Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 

of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 

to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have 

fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 

these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the 

audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 

to provide a basis for our opinion.

	� 3.	 Information other than Financial Statements and 

Auditor’s Report thereon

	� The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other 

information. The other information comprises the information 

included in the Management Discussion and Analysis, Board’s 

report including Annexure to Board’s Report, Business 

Responsibility Report, Corporate Governance and Shareholder’s 

Information but does not include the financial statements and 

our auditor’s report thereon. 

	� Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the 

other information and we do not express any form of assurance 

conclusion thereon. 

	� In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our 

responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing 

so, consider whether the other information is materially 

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge 

obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 

misstated. 

	� If, based on the work we have performed, We conclude that 

there is a material misstatement of this other information, We 

are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 

this regard.

4.	� Responsibility of Management for Ind AS Financial 

Statements

	� The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 

matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 
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(“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial 

statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position 

and financial performance, (changes in equity) and cash flows 

of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 

generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards 

specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility 

also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds 

and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 

accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are 

reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and 

presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair 

view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to 

fraud or error. 

	� In preparing the financial statements, management is 

responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as 

a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to 

going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting 

unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 

to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

	�  Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing 

the company’s financial reporting process.

5.	� Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial 

Statements

	� Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 

whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 

issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 

assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 

that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always 

detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements 

can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 

if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken 

on the basis of these financial statements.

	� As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 

professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 

throughout the audit. We also:

	� Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design 

and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 

provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a 

material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 

one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, 

intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 

internal control.

	� Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit 

in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 

2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on 

whether the company has adequate internal financial controls 

system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

	� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 

made by management.

	� Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the 

going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit 

evidence obtained, whether material uncertainty exists related 

to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the 

Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 

that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 

attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in 

the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 

to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 

audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 

However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 

to cease to continue as a going concern.

	� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 

financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and 

events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.
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	� Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial 

statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable 

that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable 

user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider 

quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 

the  scope of our  audit  work and in evaluating the results 

of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified 

misstatements in the financial statements.

	� We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, 

among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 

audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 

deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

	� We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 

that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 

regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 

relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought 

to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards.

6.	 Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

	 I.	�� As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 

2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of 

India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the 

Companies Act, 2013, we give in “Annexure-A” a statement 

on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, 

to the extent applicable.

	 II.	�� As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report 

that: 

		�  a)	� We have sought and obtained all the information and 

explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

		  b)	�� In our opinion, proper books of account as required 

by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of those books.

		  c)	� The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 

(including the Statement of Other Comprehensive 

Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the 

Statement of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report 

are in agreement with the books of account.

	 d)	�� In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements 

comply with the Indian Accounting Standards specified 

under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended.

	 e)	� On the basis of the written representations received from 

the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record by 

the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified 

as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed as a director 

in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

	� f)	� With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 

controls over financial reporting of the Company and 

the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our 

separate Report in “Annexure-B”. 

	� g)	� With respect to other matters to be included in the Auditor’s 

Report in accordance with the requirement of Section 197 

(16) of the Act, as amended:

		�  In our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, managerial remuneration has not 

been paid or provided during the year and hence reporting 

on compliance to Section 197, read with Schedule V to the 

Act does not arise.

	 h)	�� With respect to the other matters to be included in the 

Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our 

opinion and to the best of our information and according 

to the explanations given to us: 

		  i.	�� The Company has disclosed the impact of pending 

litigations on its financial position in its financial 

statements – Refer Note 31 to the financial statements

		  ii.	� The Company did not have any long-term contracts 

including derivative contracts for which there were 

any material foreseeable losses.
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		  iii. ��There were no amounts required to be transferred 

to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Company.

	 iv.	�� (a)	� The management has represented that , to the 

best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in 

the note 29(xiv) to the accounts, no funds have 

been advanced or loaned or invested (either  from 

borrowed funds or share premium or any other 

sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in 

any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 

entities(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, as on 

the date of this Audit Report, that the intermediary  

shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest 

in the other person or entities identified in any  

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

company(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 

any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the  

Ultimate Beneficiaries;

		�     (b) �The management has represented, that, to the best 

of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in Note 29 

(xiv), no funds have been received by the company 

from any person or entity, including foreign entities 

(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that 

the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, 

lend or invest in other persons or entities identified 

in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 

any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

	�    	 (c)	� Based on the audit procedures performed that have 

been considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that 

has caused us to believe that the representations 

under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e) of the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 contain 

any material misstatement.

	 v.	� No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by 

the Company.

	 vi.	� Based on our examination, which included test checks 

and based on the information and explanations given 

to us, the Company has used accounting software for 

maintaining its books of account which has a feature of 

recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have 

operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 

recorded in the software. During the course of our audit, 

we did not come across any instance of the audit trail 

feature being tampered with. Additionally, the audit trail 

has been preserved by the company as per the statutory 

requirements for record retention.

For N.C.Rajagopal & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg No: 003398S

V. Chandrasekaran 

(Partner)

Place: Chennai	 M. No: 024844 

Date: 6th May 2025	 UDIN: 25024844BMIGJO9767
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ANNEXURE - A TO THE AUDITOR’S REPORT
[Referred to in Para 6 (I) of our report of even date]

i.	 (a)	 (A)	�The Company has maintained proper records showing 

full particulars including quantitative details and 

situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

		  (B)	�The Company did not have any intangible assets during 

the year. Hence, reporting under Clause (i)(a)(B) of 

the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 does 

not arise.

	 (b)	� The Property, Plant and Equipment have been physically 

verified by the management during the year, which in 

our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of 

the Company and the nature of its Property, Plant and 

Equipment; No material discrepancies were noticed on 

such verification.

	 (c)	� The Company did not have any immovable properties 

during the year. Accordingly, reporting under Clause (i)

(c) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 does 

not arise.

	 (d)	� According to the information given to us, the company has 

not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including 

right of use assets) or Intangible assets during year.

ii.	 (a)	� Based on the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company does not hold any inventory. Hence, reporting 

under Clause(ii)(a) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) 

Order, 2020 does not arise.

	 (b)	� Based on the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits 

at any point of time of the year. Hence, reporting under 

Clause(ii)(b) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 

2020 does not arise.

iii.	� Based on the information and explanations given to us, during 

the year, the Company has not made any investment in, provided 

any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances in 

the nature of loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, 

Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties. Hence, reporting 

under Clauses (iii) (a) to (f) of the Companies (Auditors 

Report) Order, 2020 does not arise.

iv.	� There are no loans, investments, guarantees or security extended 

by the Company under the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of 

the Companies Act, 2013. Hence, reporting under clause (iv) of 

the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 does not arise.

v.	� In our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any 

deposits or amounts which are deemed to be deposits from 

the public within the meaning of Section 73 to 76 or any other 

relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules 

framed there under or under the directives of the Reserve Bank 

of India. Hence, reporting under clause (v) of the Companies 

(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 does not arise.

vi.	� According to the information and explanations given to us, the 

Central Government has not prescribed maintenance of cost 

record under Section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in 

respect of the company.

vii.	� a.	� According to the information and explanations given to us 

and as per our verification of the records of the Company, in 

our opinion, the Company is generally regular in depositing 

undisputed statutory dues including Goods and Services 

Tax, Employee’s Provident Fund, Professional Tax, Income 

Tax, and other statutory dues applicable to it and there are 

no statutory dues outstanding for a period of more than 

six months from the date they became payable as on the 

last day of the financial year.

	 b.	� According to the information and explanation given to 

us, there are no disputed liabilities that remain unpaid in 
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respect of Employee’s Provident Fund, Professional Tax and 

Income Tax. However, in respect of Goods and Services 

Tax, there is a disputed amount which is under appeal and 

remain unpaid as detailed below:

Sl.  
No.

Name  
of the  
Statute

Nature  
of Dues

Amount 
(Rs. in 
Lakhs)

Period to 
which the 
amount 
relates

Forum where 
the dispute is 

pending

1 Goods and 

Services 

Tax Acts, 

2017

Goods 

and 

Services 

Tax

11.09 FY  

2019 - 20

Joint 

Commissioner 

of GST and 

Central Excise 

(Appeals-I)

viii.	� According to the information and explanations given to us 

and as per the records of the Company, there have been no 

transactions not recorded in the books of account which have 

been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year and 

no tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 

1961) have been received during the year.

ix.	� (a)	� The Company did not have any loans or other borrowings 

during the year. Hence, reporting under clause (ix) (a) of 

the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 does not 

arise.

	 (b)	�  the Company has not been declared as a wilful defaulter 

by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

	 (c)	� In our opinion and based on our examination of the books 

and records, the Company has not availed term loans 

during the year. Hence, reporting under clause (ix) (c) 

of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 does not 

arise.

	 (d)	� In our opinion and according to the information and 

explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any 

funds on a short-term basis. Hence, reporting under clause 

(ix) (d) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 

does not arise.

	 (e)	� Based on the information and explanations given to us, 

the Company does not have any subsidiaries, associates, 

or joint ventures. Hence, reporting under clauses (ix) (e) 

and (f) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 

does not arise.

x.	 (a) �Based on the information and explanations given to us, the 

Company has not raised moneys by way of Initial Public 

Offer or Further Public Offer (including debt instruments) 

during the year. Hence, reporting under clause (x) (a) of 

the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 does not 

arise. 

	 (b)	� According to the information and explanation given to 

us, the Company has not made any preferential allotment 

or private placement of shares or convertible debentures 

(fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. 

Hence, reporting under clause (x) (b) of the Companies 

(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 does not arise.

xi.	 (a)	� According to the information and explanations given to 

us, no fraud on or by the company has been noticed or 

reported during the year;

	 (b)	� No report under section 143 (12) of the Companies Act, 

2013 has been filed by us in Form ADT-4 as prescribed 

under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 

2014 with the Central Government;

	 (c)	� According to the information and explanation given to us, 

there have been no whistle blower complaints received 

by the Company during the year. Hence, reporting under 

clause (xi) (c) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 

2020 does not arise.

xii.	� In our opinion and according to the information and explanation 

given to us, the company is not a Nidhi Company. Hence 

reporting under clauses (xii)(a) to (c) of the Companies 

(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 does not arise.

xiii.	� According to the information and explanations given to us 

and in our opinion, the transactions with related parties are 

in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act where 

applicable and the details of such transactions have been 

disclosed in the Financial Statements etc., as required by the 

applicable accounting standards.
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xiv.	 (a)	� Based on the information and explanations given to us and 

in our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system 

commensurate with the size and nature of its business;

	 (b)	� Based on the information and explanations given to us, 

appointment of Internal Auditor is not applicable to the 

Company as per the provisions of the Company Act, 2013 

and the rules made thereunder. Accordingly, appointment 

of Internal Auditor and  reporting under clauses (xiv)(b) 

of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020  does 

not arise.

xv.	� According to the information and explanations given to us, 

the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions 

with the directors or persons connected with them. Hence, 

reporting under Clause (xv) of the Companies (Auditor’s 

Report) Order, 2020 does not arise.

xvi.	� (a)	� According to the information and explanations given to 

us and in our opinion, the Company is not required to 

be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of 

India Act, 1934.

	 (b)	� Based on the information and explanations given to us 

and our scrutiny of the books of account, the Company 

has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing 

Finance Activities without a valid Certificate of Registration 

(CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve 

Bank of India Act, 1934.

	 (c)	� In our opinion, the Company is not a Core Investment 

Company (CIC) and hence, reporting under Clause (xvi) 

(c) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 

does not arise.

	 (d)	� According to the information and explanations given to 

us, the Group does not have more than one CIC as part 

of the Group.

xvii.	� According to the information and explanations given to us and 

in our opinion, the company has not incurred any cash losses 

in the financial year or in the immediately preceding financial 

year.

xviii.	� Based on the information and explanations given to us, there 

has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the 

year. Hence, reporting under Clause (xviii) of the Companies 

(Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 does not arise.

xix.	� According to the information and explanations given to us 

and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected 

dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 

liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 

statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and 

management plans and based on our examination of the 

evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to 

our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 

uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that 

company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at 

the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a 

period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, 

state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of 

the company. We further state that our reporting is based on 

the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give 

any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due 

within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will 

get discharged by the company as and when they fall due.

xx.	� According to the information and explanations given to us 

and based on our examination of records of the Company, 

the provisions of Section 135(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 

relating to Corporate Social Responsibility are not applicable 

to the Company. Hence reporting under Clause (xx) of the 

Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 does not arise.

xxi.	� In our opinion, the company does not have to prepare 

consolidated financial statements. Hence, reporting under 

Clause (xxi) of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 

does not arise.

For N.C.Rajagopal & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg No: 003398S

V. Chandrasekaran 

(Partner)

Place: Chennai	 M. No: 024844 

Date: 6th May 2025	 UDIN: 25024844BMIGJO9767
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	� We have audited the internal financial controls over financial 

reporting of Sundaram Fund Services Limited (“the Company”) 

as of 31 March, 2025, in conjunction with our audit of the Ind 

AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on 

that date.

	� Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial 

Controls

	� The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 

and maintaining internal financial controls based on the 

internal control over financial reporting criteria established 

by the Company considering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued 

by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). 

These responsibilities include the design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 

operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 

conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s 

policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and 

detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 

financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 

2013.

	� Auditors’ Responsibility

	� Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 

internal financial controls over financial reporting based on 

our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the 

Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards 

on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed 

under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the 

extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 

ANNEXURE - B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT ON THE INTERNAL 
FINANCIAL CONTROLS UNDER CLAUSE (I) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OF 

SECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 (“THE ACT”)

both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, 

both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 

Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply 

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 

financial controls over financial reporting was established 

and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 

material respects.

	� Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 

evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 

system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting 

included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 

controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a 

material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design 

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the 

assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 

judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 

misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 

or error. 

	� We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 

and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 

the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial 

reporting. 

	� Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial 

Reporting

	� A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting is 

a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 

financial statements for external purposes in accordance with 

generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal 

financial control over financial reporting includes those policies 
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and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records 

that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) 

provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 

as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 

accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 

that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 

only in accordance with authorizations of management and 

directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 

regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized 

acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that 

could have a material effect on the financial statements.

	� Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls 

over Financial Reporting 

	� Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 

over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion 

or improper management override of controls, material 

misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be 

detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal 

financial controls over financial reporting to future periods 

are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 

financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes 

in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies 

or procedures may deteriorate. 

	� Opinion 

	� In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to 

the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all material 

respects, an adequate internal financial control system over 

financial reporting and such internal financial controls 

over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st 

March,2025, based on the internal control over financial 

reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 

essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 

Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 

India.

For N.C.Rajagopal & Co., 

Chartered Accountants 

Firm Reg No: 003398S

V. Chandrasekaran 

(Partner)

Place: Chennai	 M. No: 024844 

Date: 6th May 2025	 UDIN: 25024844BMIGJO9767
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 (` in lakhs) 

SUNDARAM FUND SERVICES LIMITED 

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2025

Notes  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

 I. ASSETS 
 (1) Non-Current Assets 

 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment 2  0.08  0.51 
 Total Non - Current Assets  0.08  0.51 

 (2) Current Assets 
 (a) Financial Assets 

(i)   Investments 5  0.00  111.10 
(ii)  Trade Receivables 6  0.00  18.68 
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 7  5.51  1.89 
(iv)  Bank balances other than (iii) above 8  98.00  -

 (b) Other Current Assets 9  8.69  32.88 
 (c)  Current Tax Assets (Net) 4  2.21  16.49 
 Total Current Assets  114.42  181.04 
 Total Assets  114.50  181.55 

 II. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
 (1) Equity 

(a) Equity Share Capital 10  150.30  4,500.30 
(b) Other Equity 11

(i) Retained Earnings  (37.38)  (4,390.58)
Total Equity  112.92  109.72 

 (2) Non- Current Liabilities 
(a) Financial Liabilites  -    -   

i)   Borrowings 
ii)  Non Current Provision 12  -    11.94 
iii) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 3  -    1.41 

Total Non - Current Liabilities  -    13.35 
 (3) Current Liabilities 

i)  Financial Liabilities 
a) Trade Payables 14  0.00  27.23 

ii) Other Current Liabilities 15  -    8.19 
iii) Current Provision 13  1.58  23.06 
 Total Current Liabilities  1.58  58.48 
 Total Liabilities  1.58  71.83 
 Total Equity and Liabilities  114.50  181.55 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report on even date attached 
For N.C. Rajagopal & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN 003398S  

V. Chandrasekaran 
Partner 
Membership No.024844 
Place: Chennai
Date: 6th May 2025

R S Raghunathan 		    Ajith Kumar
Director	 Director
DIN: 09650827	 DIN:   07709222
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Particulars Note No.  31.03.2025  31.03.2024

Revenue from Operations 16  -    94.68 

Other Income 17  13.80  34.25 

Total Revenue                   13.80  128.93 

Expenses 

Employee Benefit Expense 18  0.01  82.29 

Depreciation and amortization expenses 19  0.14  0.73 

Administrative and Other Expenses 20  11.86  19.52 

Total Expenses                  12.00  102.53 

Profit before Tax  1.80  26.40 

Tax Expense 

Current Tax  -    -   

Deferred Tax   (1.41)  (2.03)

Total - Tax Expenses  (1.41)  (2.03)

 Profit after tax  3.20  28.43 

Other Comprehensive Income 

a. �Items that will not be reclassified to Statement to 
Profit & Loss 

Gain or (loss) on 'Remeasurement of Defined Benefit 
Liability

 -    (2.27)

Tax relating to Remeasurements of defined benefit liability  -    -   

Total Other comprehensive Income  -    (2.27)

Total Comprehensive Income  3.20  26.16 

Earning per equity share (in Rs. / -) 

Basic earnings per share 21  0.21  0.06 

Diluted earnings per share 21  0.21  0.06 

 (` in lakhs) 

SUNDARAM FUND SERVICES LIMITED 

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31.03.2025			 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements. 

As per our report on even date attached 
For N.C. Rajagopal & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN 003398S  

V. Chandrasekaran 
Partner 
Membership No.024844 
Place: Chennai
Date: 6th May 2025

R S Raghunathan 		    Ajith Kumar
Director	 Director
DIN: 09650827	 DIN:   07709222
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 (` in lakhs) 

A) EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(1) Current Reporting Period

Outstanding for following periods from due date of transaction

 Balance at the beginning 

of the current reporting 

period 

 Changes in Equity Share 

Capital due to prior 

period errors 

 Restated balance at the 

beginning of the current 

reporting period 

" Changes in equity share 

capital during the current 

year 

(Refer Note 32) "

 Balance at the end of the 

current reporting period 

 4,500.30  4,500.30  4,350.00  150.30 

 
(2) Previous Reporting Period

Outstanding for following periods from due date of transaction

 Balance at the beginning 

of the current reporting 

period 

 Changes in Equity Share 

Capital due to prior 

period errors 

 Restated balance at the 

beginning of the current 

reporting period 

 Changes in equity share 

capital during the current 

year 

 Balance at the end of the 

current reporting period 

 4,500.30  -    4,500.30  -    4,500.30 
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 (` in lakhs) 

SUNDARAM FUND SERVICES LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025						    

31.03.2025 31.03.2024
A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit Before Tax  1.80  26.40 
Add: 
Bad Debts and Advances Written Off  6.90  3.10 
(Profit)/Loss on Sale of assets  -  - 
Amount recognized in OCI  -  (2.27)
Depreciation  0.14  0.73 
Rent - Ind AS  -  -   
Liabilities no longer required written back  (6.00)  -   
Interest Income  (6.14)  (2.93)
Realized /unrealized Gain on Sale of Investments  (1.33)  (28.32)

OPERATING PROFIT BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES  (4.65)  (3.29)
(Increase) / Decrease in Non-Current Assets  -   -  
(Increase) / Decrease in Other Current Assets  24.19  (29.07)
(Increase) / Decrease in Trade Receivables  18.68  4.16 
(Increase) / Decrease in Financial assets  -  12.43 
Increase / (Decrease) in Trade Payables  (27.23)  (229.33)
Increase / (Decrease) in Short term provisions  (15.48)  10.02 
Increase / (Decrease) in Long term provisions  (11.94)  6.43 
Increase / (Decrease) in Other Liabilities  (8.19)  (0.09)

 (19.97)  (225.45)
 (24.62)  (228.74)

Direct Tax Paid  7.38  0.76 
B) NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES (A )  (17.24)  (227.98)

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
(Purchase)/Sale of fixed assets  0.29  (0.49)
Interest received  6.14  2.93 

C) Net Investments made  14.44  223.64 
NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES (B )  20.86  226.08 
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal repayments for finance lease obligation  -  - 
Interest expense  -  - 
Increase (Decrease) in Other longterm liabilities  -  - 
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (C )  -  - 
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  
(A) + (B) + (C)

 3.62  (1.90)

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  1.89  3.79 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  5.51  1.89 

COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE 
END OF THE YEAR
Current Accounts with Banks  5.51  1.89 

Cash on Hand  0.00  0.00 

 5.51  1.89 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report on even date attached 
For N.C. Rajagopal & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN 003398S  

V. Chandrasekaran 
Partner 
Membership No.024844 
Place: Chennai
Date: 6th May 2025

R S Raghunathan 		    Ajith Kumar
Director	 Director
DIN: 09650827	 DIN:   07709222
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NOTE 1: MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (A) AND OTHER ACCOUNTING POLICIES (B)

Material accounting policy information:

1.1	 Reporting Entity

Sundaram Fund Services Limited (the ‘Company’) (formerly known as Sundaram BNP Paribas Fund services limited) is a Public limited 

company, having a share capital, domiciled in India, with its registered office situated at 21 Patullos Road, Chennai - 600002. The Company 

has been incorporated under the provisions of Indian Companies Act and is currently unlisted. The Company is a Wholly owned Subsidiary of 

Sundaram Finance Limited. The Company is engaged in rendering Fund Accounting services and Call Centre Services for Mutual Funds and 

Alternative Investment Funds (AIF’s).

1.2 Basis of preparation

	 •	 Statement of compliance

		�  These Financial Statements have been prepared on accrual basis of accounting in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards 

(IND AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rule, 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the 

‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act. Disclosures under IND AS are made only in respect of material items and in respect 

of the items that will be useful to the users of Financial Statements in making economic decisions.

		  The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on 06.05.2025.

	 •	 Functional and presentation currency

		�  These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘INR’), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All financial 

information presented in INR has been rounded to the nearest Lakhs, except as stated otherwise.

	 •	 Basis of measurement

	 The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis

Financial assets and liabilities Fair value at initial recognition

Net defined benefit (asset) / liability Present value of defined benefit obligation less fair value of plan assets 

•	 Current and non-current classification

		�  All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other 

criteria set out in Ind AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.

Operating cycle:

	� Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash equivalents. The 

Company’s normal operating cycle is considered as 12 months for the purpose of current and non-current classification of assets and 

liabilities.

Assets:

	 An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

	 •	 it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating cycle;

	 •	 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded.

	 •	 it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting date; and

	 •	� it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the 

reporting date.
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Liabilities:

	 A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

	 •	 it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal operating cycle;

	 •	 it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

	 •	 it is due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting date; and

	 •	� the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months from the reporting date. 

Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not 

affect its classification.

	 •	 Use of estimates and judgments

		�  The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires management to make estimates and assumptions that 

affect the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period, reported balances of assets and liabilities, and 

disclosure of contingent liabilities as at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates 

and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized prospectively in 

current and future periods.

		�  In developing the assumptions relating to possible future uncertainties, the company has used internal and external sources of 

information for the expected performance of the company. Though the company expects to recover the carrying amount of these 

assets, it will continue to monitor the potential future impact any material changes in future economic condition and its effects on 

the financial position and performance of the company.

	 •	 Measurement of fair values

		�  The Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values for financial assets and liabilities.

		�  The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair values. The Company regularly reviews 

significant unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. If third party information is required, the Company assesses the evidence 

obtained by the third parties to support the conclusions that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS, including the level 

in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

		�  Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as 

follows:

		  Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

		�  Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as 

prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

		  Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

		�  When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as possible. If the inputs used 

to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement 

is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire 

measurement.

		�  The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting period during which the 

change has occurred.

		  Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair values is included in the following notes.
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1.3	 Significant accounting policies

		�  The note below provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements. These 

policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

1.3.1.	Property, plant and equipment

	 •	 Recognition and measurement

		�  Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated 

impairment loss, if any. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price including non-refundable 

taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use; any trade discounts 

and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

		�  If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as separate 

items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

		�  Items of property, plant and equipment are eliminated from the financial statements on disposal or when no further benefit is 

expected from its use and disposal. Losses arising from retirement or gains or losses arising from disposal of property, plant and 

equipment which are carried at cost are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

	 •	 Subsequent expenditure

		�  Subsequent expenditures related to an item of property, plant and equipment are added to its book value only if they increase the 

future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously assessed standard of performance.

	 •	 Depreciation

		�  Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of property, plant and equipment less their estimated residual values over their estimated 

useful lives using written down value method and is generally recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

	  	 Estimated useful lives of Tangible Assets:

Assets Useful life

Computers – End user devices 3 years

Computers – Servers and networks 6years

Office Equipment (Second hand) 5 years

Furniture and Fixtures (Second hand) 10 years

		  Depreciation on Right Of Use assets is done on SLM method 

		�  Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and adjusted if appropriate, prospectively. 

		�  Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (up to) the date on which asset is ready for use 

(disposed of).

1.3.2	Other intangible assets

	 •	 Recognition and measurement

		�  Intangible assets acquired by the Company are initially measured at cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost 

less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any.

		�  An intangible asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use and disposal. Losses 

arising from retirement and gains or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the 

net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
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	 •	 Subsequent expenditure

		�  Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset to which 

it relates. All other expenditure is recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

	 •	 Amortization

		�  Amortization is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful 

lives using the straight-line method and is included in depreciation and amortization in statement of profit and loss.

		  The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Asset Estimate of useful life

Software 3 years

		�  Amortization method and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date. If the useful life of an asset is estimated to be significantly 

different from previous estimates, the amortization period is changed accordingly.  If there has been a significant change in the 

expected pattern of economic benefits from the asset, the amortization method is changed to reflect the changed pattern.

1.3.3	Employee benefits

	 •	 Short-term employee benefits

		�  Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided. 

A liability is recognized for the amount expected to be paid, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this 

amount as a result of past service provided by the employee, and the amount of obligation can be estimated reliably.

	 •	 Defined contribution plan – Provident Fund & Superannuation

		�  Eligible employees receive benefits from the provident fund, which is a defined contribution plan. Both the employee and the Company 

make monthly contributions to the government administered provident fund plan equal to specified percentage of the covered 

employee’s basic salary. The Company contributes a fixed percentage on salary to the superannuation fund, which is administered 

by trustees and managed by SBI Life Insurance Company Limited. The Company has no further obligations under the plans beyond 

its monthly contributions. Such contributions are charged to the statement of profit and loss on accrual basis.

	 •	 Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

		�  The Company provides gratuity, a defined benefit plan covering eligible employees.  Contributions are made to a Gratuity Fund 

administered by trustees and managed by SBI Life Insurance Company Limited, The Company’s net obligation in respect of a defined 

benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in the 

current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognized past service costs and the 

fair value of any plan assets are deducted.

		�  The calculation of defined benefit obligation is performed annually using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation 

results in a potential asset for the Company, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the 

form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan (‘the asset ceiling’). In order to calculate 

the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

		�  Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding 

interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized in OCI. The Company determines the net 

interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure 

the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into 

account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. 

Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in profit or loss.  
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		�  When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service (‘past 

service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately in profit or loss. The Company 

recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs.

	 •	 Other long-term employee benefits – Compensated absences

		�  The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it in future service periods 

or receive cash compensation on termination of employment. Since the compensated absences do not fall due wholly within twelve 

months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service and are also not expected to be utilized wholly 

within twelve months after the end of such period, the benefit is classified as long-term employee benefit. The Company records an 

obligation for such compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this entitlement. 

Provision for long- term compensated absences is made on the basis of amount accrued as at the balance sheet date.

1.3.4	Revenue

		  Income from services is recognized on accrual basis.

1.3.5	Foreign currency transactions

		�  Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the Company at the exchange rates at 

the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

		�  Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at 

the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are, measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the 

functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured 

based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Exchange differences 

are recognized in profit or loss account.

1.3.6	Provisions (other than for employee benefits)

		�  A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be 

estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are 

determined by discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the 

present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 

and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognized as finance cost. Expected future operating losses 

are not provided for.

1.3.7	Income tax

		�  Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to an item 

recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

	 •	 Current tax

		�  Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and any adjustment to the tax 

payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected 

to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) 

enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

		�  Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts, 

and it is intended to realize the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.
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	 •	 Deferred tax

		�  Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial 

reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is also recognized in respect of carried 

forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will 

be available against which they can be used.

		�  Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, 

based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

		�  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and assets, and they 

relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle 

current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

1.3.8	Financial instruments

	 •	 Recognition and initial measurement

		�  All financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions 

of the instrument. Trade receivables are initially recognized when they are originated.

		�  A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at fair value through profit and 

loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

	 •	 Classification and subsequent measurement

		  Financial assets

		  On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

	 •	 amortized cost;

	 •	 FVOCI - debt investment;

	 •	 FVOCI - equity investment; or

	 •	 FVTPL

		�  Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the Company changes its 

business model for managing financial assets.

		�  A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

	 •	 the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and

	 •	� the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 

on the principal amount outstanding.

		  A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

	 •	� the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial 

assets; and

	 •	� the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest 

on the principal amount outstanding.
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		�  On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may irrevocably elect to present subsequent 

changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI – equity investment). This election is made on an investment-by-

investment basis.

		�  All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL. This includes 

all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the 

requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting 

mismatch that would otherwise arise.

	 Financial assets: Business model assessment

		�  The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level 

because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management.

	 Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

F�inancial assets at FVTPL These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including 

any interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

�Financial assets at amortized cost These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 

method. The amortized cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign 

exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or 

loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

�Debt investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under the effective 

interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognized in 

profit or loss. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI. On derecognition, gains 

and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified to profit or loss.

�Equity investments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognized as 

income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the 

cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in OCI and are not 

reclassified to profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses    

		�  Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified 

as held-for-trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured 

at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are 

subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized 

in profit or loss.

	 •	 Derecognition

Financial assets

		�  The company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or it transfers 

the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of 

the financial asset are transferred or in which the company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards 

of ownership and does not retain control of the financial asset.

		�  If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially 

all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not derecognized.
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Financial liabilities

		�  The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.

		�  The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the modified terms are 

substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognized at fair value. The difference 

between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized 

in profit or loss.

	 •	 Offsetting

	� Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when, and only when, the 

Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to 

realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

1.3.9	 Impairment

	 •	 Impairment of financial instruments

		�  The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at amortized cost.

		�  At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost are credit-impaired. A financial 

asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial 

asset have occurred.

		  Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

	 •	 significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

	 •	 a breach of contract such as a default or being past due for 365 days or more;

	 •	 is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;

	� Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

	� Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a 

financial instrument.  

	� In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum contractual period over which 

the Company is exposed to credit risk.

	� When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when estimating 

expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue 

cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience 

and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

Measurement of expected credit losses

	� Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all cash 

shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the 

Company expects to receive).

Loss allowance for receivable and other Financial Assets.

	� The Company determines the allowance for credit losses based on historical loss experiences adjusted to reflect current and estimated 

future economic conditions.
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Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

	 Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Write-off

	� The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no realistic prospect of 

recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could 

generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be 

subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

	 •	 Impairment of non-financial assets

		�  The Company’s non-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there 

is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

		�  For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into cash-generating units (CGUs). 

Each CGU represents the smallest Company of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of 

other assets or CGUs.

		�  The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value less costs to sell. Value in 

use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current 

market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

		�  An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable amount. Impairment 

losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

1.3.10. Borrowing cost

		�  Borrowing costs are interest and other costs (including exchange differences relating to foreign currency borrowings to the extent 

that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs) incurred in connection with the borrowing of fund. Borrowing costs 

directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for 

their intended use are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period 

in which they are incurred.

	 •	 Recognition of interest expense

		�  Interest expense is recognized using the effective interest method.

		�  The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of 

the financial instrument to:

	 •	 the gross carrying amount of the financial asset; or

	 •	 the amortized cost of the financial liability.

		�  In calculating interest income and expense, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when the 

asset is not credit-impaired) or to the amortized cost of the liability. However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired 

subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the 

financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross basis.
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1.3.11.Earnings per share

	� The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the 

profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 

during the period, adjusted for own shares held (if any). Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary 

shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for own shares held and for the effects of all 

dilutive potential ordinary shares.

1.3.12.Cash flow statements

	� Cash flow statements are prepared under Indirect Method whereby profit or loss is adjusted for the effects of transactions of a non-cash 

nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments, and items of income or expense associated with 

investing or financing cash flows.

1.3.13 Cash and cash equivalents

	 Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash and cash on deposit with banks.

1.3.14 Events occurring after the balance sheet date

	� Assets and liabilities are adjusted for events occurring after the reporting period that provide additional evidence to assist the estimation 

of amounts relating to conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

1.3.15 Leases

	� The company’s lease assets primarily comprises of buildings. The company assesses whether a contract contains a lease at the inception 

of the contract. A contract is, or contains a lease, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 

time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Company 

assesses whether:

	� (i) the contract involves the use of an identified asset 

	� (ii) the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and 

	� (iii) the Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.
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NOTES TO BALANCE SHEET			   (` in lakhs)

NOTE Particulars  March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

3. DEFERRED TAX ASSET/ (LIABILITIES) (NET)

Notional Gain on Mutual Funds  -  (1.41)

Total  -    (1.41)

4. CURRENT TAX  ASSETS (NET)

Advance Income Tax and Tax Deducted at Source  
(Net of provisions for Income Tax- NIL (PY-NIL))

 2.21  16.49 

Total  2.21  16.49 

5. INVESTMENTS
Sundaram Ultra Short Duration Fund (CY- NIL, PY - 4167.375 Units, NAV- 
2665.9842 /-)

 0.00  111.10 

Aggregate amount of Quoted Investments  0.00  111.10 

6. TRADE RECEIVABLES

Unsecured considered good

- Outstanding for a period more than 6 months  -    -   

- Less than 6 months  0.00  18.68 

Unsecured considered doubtful

- Outstanding for a period more than 6 months  -    -   

Less :Provision for doubtful debts  -    -   

Total  0.00  18.68 
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Trade Receivables ageing schedule

i) Current period

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 

months

6 months - 

1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 0.00  -  -    - 0.00

(ii) �Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have 

significant increase in credit risk

�  -  -  -  -  -   

(iii) �Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -  -  -  -  -  -   

(iv) �Disputed Trade Receivables– 

considered good"

 -  -  -  -  -  -   

(v) �Disputed Trade Receivables – which have significant 

increase in credit risk

 -  -  -  -  -  -   

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -  -  -  -  -  -   

 
ii) Previous period

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 6 

months

6 months - 

1 year

1-2 years 2-3 years More than 

3 years

Total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good 18.68  -  -    -  -   18.68

(ii) �Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have 

significant increase in credit risk

 -  -  -  -  -  -   

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -  -  -  -  -  -   

(iv) �Disputed Trade Receivables– 

considered good"

 -  -  -  -  -  -   

(v) �Disputed Trade Receivables – which have significant 

increase in credit risk

 -  -  -  -  -  -   

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -  -  -  -    -    -   
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Reconciliation of number of equity shares subscribed

Particulars  No of shares 

Balance as at March 31, 2023  45,003,000 

Changes during the year  -   

Balance as at March 31, 2024  45,003,000 

Changes during the year (Refer Note 32)  (43,500,000)

Balance as at March 31, 2025  1,503,000 

The company has neither issued any bonus shares  nor issued any shares for consideration other than cash during the period of five years 

immediately preceeding the reporting date. The company has also not bought back any shares during these years.

NOTES TO BALANCE SHEET			   (` in lakhs)

NOTE Particulars  March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

7 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash on hand  0.00  0.00 

Balance with Banks in Current Account  5.51  1.89 

 TOTAL  5.51  1.89 

8 BANK BALANCES OTHER THAN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank deposits with original maturity of more than  

three months but less than 12 months

 98.00  -   

Total  98.00  -   

9 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Prepaid Expenses  0.03  0.29 

Staff Advance  -    1.67 

Balances with Government Authorities  1.86  0.00 

Other Current Assets  6.80  30.92 

 8.69  32.88 

NOTE: 10 -  EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(` in lakhs)

Particulars 31.03.2025 
`

 31.03.2024 

`

a. Authorised:

5,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

(Previous year - 10,00,00,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)  5,000  10,000 

b. Issued, Subscribed and Paid up :

15,03,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each

  (Previous year - 4,50,03,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each)

 150.30  4,500.30 

 150.30  4,500.30 
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 Details of number of shares held by shareholders holding more than 5% shares are set out below:

   Name of the Shareholder 
 Status  No. of Shares  % held as at  

31st  March 2025 

 No. of Shares % held as at  

31st  March 2024 

   Sundaram Finance Limited*  Holding Company  1,503,000.00 100%  45,003,000.00 100%

 * includes 6 Equity Shares held by nominees of Sundaram Finance Limited

  Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

   Name of the Shareholder 
No. of Shares % of Total Shares % Change during 

the year

   Sundaram Finance Limited*  1,503,000 100% NIL

  * includes 6 Equity Shares held by nominees of Sundaram Finance Limited 

NOTE: 11

Other Equity

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus

Securities 

Premium Reserve

 Retained 

Earnings 

 Total 

Balance as at 31st Mar 2024  (4,390.58)  (4,390.58)

Effect of Capital reduction (Refer Note 32)  4,350.00 

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans  -  -    - 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  -  3.20  3.20 

Balance as at 31st March 2025  -  (37.38)  (37.38)

Particulars

Reserves and Surplus

Securities 

Premium Reserve

 Retained 

Earnings 

 Total 

Balance as at 31st Mar,2023  (4,416.72)  (4,416.72)

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans  -  -    - 

Profit/(Loss) for the year  -  26.16  26.16 

Effect of demrger transferred to retained earnings  -  -  - 

Balance as at 31st Mar 2024  -  (4,390.58)  (4,390.58)
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Trade Payables aging schedule

i) Current period

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years Over 3 years Total

(i) MSME  -    -    -    -    -   

(ii) Others  0.00  -    -    -    0.00 

(iii) Disputed dues – MSME  -    -    -    -    -   

(iv) Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   

			   (` in lakhs)

NOTE Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

12 NON-CURRENT PROVISIONS

Provision for Employee Benefit Obligation:

Provisions for Leave Encashment  -    5.83 

Provisions for Gratuity  -    6.10 

Total  -    11.94 

13 CURRENT PROVISIONS

Provisions for Leave Encashment  -    0.33 

Other provisions  1.58  22.73 

Total  1.58  23.06 

14 TRADE PAYABLES

For Services    

a) Total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises ; and  -    -   

b) �Total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises 

 0.00  27.23 

Total  0.00  27.23 
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NOTE Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

15 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES
Statutory Dues  -    2.33 

Other Current Liabilities  -    5.86 

Total  -    8.19 

Notes forming part of the Statement of Profit and Loss for the Period ending 
31.03.2025

16 REVENUE FROM SALE OF SERVICES

Services Rendered

Fund Accounting and Call Centre Services  -    94.68 

 TOTAL  -    94.68 

17 OTHER INCOME

Net Gain ( Loss) on Fair Value Changes:

a) �Net Gain / ( Loss) arising on Financial Assets 
Measured at Fair Value through P&L

 1.33  28.32 

Of the above, fair value changes:

Realised  6.93  32.11 

Unrealised  (5.59)  (3.80)

Rent and Amenities  -    -   

Reversal of Provision for Doubtful Debts no longer required  -    -   

Interest Receipts  6.14  2.93 

Interest on Income tax refund  0.32  0.39 

Liabilities no longer required written back  6.00  -   

Profit on Sale of Assets  -    -   

Misclleneous Income  0.00  2.60 

 TOTAL  13.80  34.25 

Trade Payables aging schedule

ii) Previous period

Particulars

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

(i) MSME  -    -    -    -    -   

(ii) Others  27.23  -    -    -    27.23 

(iii) Disputed dues – MSME  -    -    -    -    -   

(iv)Disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   
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(` in lakhs)

NOTE Particulars 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

18 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE

Salaries, Bonus and other allowances  -    68.09 

Company's contribution to Provident fund, gratuity and other funds  0.01  14.13 

Staff Welfare Expenses  -    0.06 

Total  0.01  82.29 

19 DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION EXPENSES

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  0.14  0.73 

Total  0.14  0.73 

20 ADMINISTRATIVE AND OTHER EXPENSES 

Rent  -    1.38 

Printing & stationery  0.38  0.36 

Communication Charges  0.34  -   

Outsourcing Charges  -    0.08 

Insurance  -    0.67 

Repairs & Maintenance  0.18  0.40 

Professional and Consultancy Fees  1.95  10.39 

Audit Fee**  1.90  3.00 

Bad Debts and Assets Written Off  6.90  3.10 

Miscellaneous Expenses  0.20  0.14 

Total  11.86  19.52 

**Audit Fees: 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

Statutory Audit  1.50  3.00 

Tax Audit  -    -   

Other Services  0.40  -   

Total  1.90  3.00 
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NOTE: 21 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

	� The calculations of profit attributable to equity shareholders and weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for purposes 

of basic earnings per share calculation are as follows:		

	� Since the shares issued by the Company are non-dilutive in nature, the Company’s basic and diluted earnings per share shall remain 

the same. 	

i.	 Profit attributable to equity shareholders (basic and diluted)	 (` in lakhs)

Particulars  31.03.2025  31.03.2024 

Profit / (Loss) for the year, attributable to the equity holders  3.20  28.43 

ii.	 Weighted average number of equity shares (basic and diluted) 	(Number in lakhs):

Particulars  As at 31.03.25  As at 31.03.24

Opening balance  450.03  450.03 

Changes due to Capital Reduction  435.00  -   

Weighted average number of equity shares for the year  15.03  450.03 

 

Particulars  As at 31.03.25  As at 31.03.24

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (in Rs. /-)  0.21  0.06 

Diluted earnings per share (in Rs. /-)  0.21  0.06 

NOTE: 22 INCOME TAXES
A.	 Amounts recognised in profit or loss
	

2024-25 2023-24

Current tax  -    -   

Current period (a)  -    -   

Changes in estimates related to prior years (b)  -    -   

Deferred tax  ( c ) 

Attributable to - 

Origination and reversal of temporary differences  (1.41)  (2.03)

Reduction in tax rate  -    -   

Change in unrecognised deductible temporary differences  -    -   

Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses  -    -   

Tax expense of continuing operations (a) + (b) + (c)  (1.41)  (2.03)
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B.	 Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income	 (` in lakhs)

2024-25 2023-24

Before tax Tax (expense) 
/benefit

Net of tax Before tax Tax (expense) /
benefit

Net of tax

Re-measurements of defined benefit 
gain (Loss) 

 -  -  -    (2.27)  -  (2.27)

C.	 Reconciliation of effective tax rate

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24

Rates Amount Rates Amount

Profit before tax 25.17%  1.80 25.17%  26.40 

Tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate :  0.45  6.64 

Effect of:

Origination and reversal of temporary differences  -    (2.03)

Current year losses for which no deferred tax asset 

was recognised

 -    8.68 

Set off of Carry Forward Loss / Utilisation of Current 

Year Depreciation

 (0.45)  (8.68)

Effective tax rate  -  -    -  - 

D.	 Recognised deferred tax assets and liabilities
	 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable to the following:

Particulars

Deferred tax (assets) Deferred tax liabilities
Deferred tax (assets) 

liabilities

As at                           
31-03-2025

As at                           
31-03-2024

As at                           
31-03-2025

As at                           
31-03-2024

As at                           
31-03-2025

As at                           
31-03-2024

Property, plant and Equipment  -  -  -    -   

Intangible assets  -  -  -    -   

Total  -  -  -  -  - 

Investments at fair value through 

profit or loss

 -  -  -  1.41  -    (1.41)

Provisions - employee benefits  -  -  -  -  -    -   

Total  -  -  -  1.41  -  (1.41)

Deferred tax (assets) liabilities  -  -  -  1.41  -  (1.41)

Offsetting of deferred tax assets and 

deferred tax liabilities

 -  -  - 

Net deferred tax (assets) 
liabilities 

 -  -  -  1.41  -  (1.41)



Annual Report
49

Annual Report
2024-25

NOTE: 23 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

	 Assets and liabilities relating to employee benefits	 (` in lakhs)

Particulars

Current Non Current

As at 
 March 31, 

2025 

As at 
 March 31, 

2024 

As at 
 March 31, 

2025 

As at 
 March 31, 

2024 

Net defined benefit liability - Gratuity plan  -  -  -  6.10 

Total employee benefit liability  -  -  -  6.10 

Liability for compensated absences  -    0.33  -  14.03 

Cash-settled share-based payment liability  -    -  -  - 

Total employee benefit liabilities  -  0.33  -  20.13 

E.	 Unrecognsied deferred tax liabilities
	 There are no such items.

F.	 Unrecognsied deferred tax assets
	� Based on the asessement done, Company has not recognised Deferred tax assets in respect of the following items, because it is not 

probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the Company can use the benefits there from: 

		  (in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

31-03-2025
As at  

31-03-2024

Property, plant and Equipment 9.10 12.83

Provisions - employee benefits 0.00 3.09

Total 9.10  15.91 

	 Summary of Tax losses for which no deferred tax asset was recognised are as follows:
	 (in Lakhs)

Particulars
As at  

31-03-2025
As at  

31-03-2024

Losses having restriction on carry forward benefit  14.86  19.89 

Depreciation Loss  28.78  15.78 

Total  43.64  35.67 
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	 A.	 Funding

		�  Defined benefit plan is fully funded by the Company with LIC. The funding requirements are based on the gratuity fund’s actuarial 

measurement framework set out in the funding policies of the plan. The funding of plan is based on a separate actuarial valuation 

for funding purposes for which the assumptions may differ from the assumptions set out. Employees do not contribute to the plan.  

As the Company did not have any employees as at the yearend, the requirement to obtain an independent actuarial valuation as at 

the yearend did not arise.				  

	 B.	 Reconciliation of net defined benefit (asset) liability

		�  The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances to the closing balances for the net defined benefit asset 

(liability) and its components.

	 Gratuity plan

	 Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year  -    43.69 

Benefits paid  -    (29.98)

Current service cost **  -    3.73 

Interest cost  -    3.07 

Actuarial (gain)/loss from changes in financial assumptions  -    0.52 

Actuarial (gain)/loss from experience adjustments  -    1.14 

Liabilities settled

Balance at the end of the year  -    43.69 

 

	 Reconciliation of present value of plan assets

Particulars As at 
March 31, 2025

As at 
March 31, 2024

Balance at the beginning of the year  -    40.82 

Contributions paid into the plan  -    2.87 

Benefits paid  -    (29.98)

Interest income  -    2.97 

Return on plan assets recognized in other comprehensive income  -    (0.61)

Balance at the end of the year  -    40.82 

Net defined benefit (asset) / liability  -    2.87 
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	 C.  i. Expenses Recognized in profit or loss

 Year ended  
March 31, 2025

 Year ended 
March 31, 2024

Current service cost  -    3.73 

Interest cost  -    0.10 

Past service gain  -    -   

Interest income  -    -   

Total  -    3.83 

		  ii. Remeasurements recognized in other comprehensive income

 Year ended  
March 31, 2025

 Year ended 
March 31, 2024

Actuarial (gain) loss on defined benefit obligation  -    0.52 

Experience Adjustments  -    1.14 

Return on plan assets excluding interest income  0.61 

Total  -    2.27 

	 D	 Plan Assets

		  Plan assets comprise of the following:

AS at  
March 31, 2025

AS at 
March 31, 2024

Insurer managed funds  -    40.82 

 -    40.82 

	 E	 Defined Benefit Obligation

		  i.  Actuarial Assumptions

  		    Principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date (expressed as weighted averages):

AS at  
March 31, 2025

AS at 
March 31, 2024

Discount rate NA 7.45%

Future salary growth NA 7.00%

Attrition rate NA 18.00%

Mortality Rate NA INDIAN ASSURED 

LIVES MORTALITY 

(2012-14) 

ULTIMATE
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		  ii.  (a)	 Sensitivity Analysis				  
		�  Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions 

constant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:		

(` in lakhs)

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Gratuity

Discount rate (+100 basis points) NA 8.45%

Discount rate (-100 basis points) NA 6.45%

Future salary growth (+100 basis points) NA 8.00%

Future salary growth (-100 basis points) NA 6.00%

Key Actuarial Assumptions: 31.03.2025 31.03.2024

The Key Actuarial assumptions adopted for the  purpose of this valuation are 

given below:

a) Discount rate (p.a.) NA 7.45%

b) Salary escalation rate (p.a.) NA 7.00%

c) Retirement Age

The employees of the company are assumed to retire at the age of 58 years.

d) Mortality

Published rates under the Indian Assured Lives Mortality (2012-14) Ut table.

Rates of Indian Assured Lives Mortality table at specimen ages are as shown below:

Age (years) & Rates (p.a.) 
 FY 2023-24

18 0.000874

23 0.000936

28 0.000942

33 0.001086

38 0.001453

43 0.002144

48 0.003536

53 0.006174

58 0.009651

Age (years) & Rates (p.a.) 
FY 2023-24

e) Leaving Service: 21-30 10%

Rates of leaving service at specimen ages are as shown below: 31-40 5%

41-50 3%

51-57 2%

f) Disability:

Leaving service due to disability is included in the provision made for all

caused of leaving serivce (paragraph (e) above).
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NOTE: 24 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUES	
(` in Lakhs)

		��  A.   �Accounting classifications and fair values
		  �      �The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, including their levels 

in the fair value hierarchy. 

March 31, 2025

Carrying Amount  Fair Value 
Mandatorily 
at FVTPL - 

Others

Other 
financial 
assets - 

amortized 
cost

Other 
financial 
liabilities

Total  
carrying 
amount

 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Financial assets measured at fair value*

Mutual fund investments  0.00  0.00  0.00  -   

Rental and other Deposits  -    -    -   

Loans to Related parties  -    -    -   

Trade Recievables  0.00  0.00  0.00 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  5.51  5.51  5.51 

Bank balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents  98.00  98.00  98.00 

 0.00  103.51  -    103.51  0.00  103.51 

Financial liabilities measured at fair value*

Trade payables  -    0.00  0.00 0.00

 -    0.00  -    0.00 0.00

*  �For all of the Company’s assets and liabilities which are not carried at fair value, disclosure of fair value is not required as the carrying 
amounts approximates the fair values.

March 31, 2024

Carrying Amount  Fair Value 
Mandatorily 
at FVTPL - 

Others

Other financial 
assets - 

amortized cost

Other 
financial 
liabilities

Total 
carrying 
amount

 Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Financial assets measured at fair value

Mutual fund investments  111.10  111.10  111.10 
Rental and other Deposits  -    -    -   
Loans to Related parties  -    -    -   
Trade Recievables  18.68  18.68  18.68 
'Cash and Cash Equivalents  1.89  1.89  1.89 

 111.10  20.57  -    131.68  111.10  20.57 
Financial liabilities measured at fair value*

Trade payables  27.23 27.23
 27.23 

 -    27.23  -   27.23
 27.23 

* �For all of the Company’s assets and liabilities which are not carried at fair value, disclosure of fair value is not required as the carrying 
amounts approximates the fair values.
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NOTE: 25 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FAIR VALUES (CONTINUED)
	 Financial risk management

	 The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments

	 -	 credit risk 

	 -	 liquidity risk 

	 -	 market risk 

	 This note explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the Company manages the risk.

Risk Exposure arising from Measurement

Credit risk Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other financial 

assets measured at amortised cost.

Ageing analysis credit ratings

Liquidity risk Borrowings and other liabilities Rolling cash flow forecasts

Market risk - foreign exchange Recognised financial liabilities not denominated in Indian  

rupee (INR)

Sensitivity analysis

Market risk - interest rate Long-term and Short-term borrowings at variable interest rates. Sensitivity analysis

	� The company’s risk management is carried out by the treasury team under policies approved by the board of directors. The board 

provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, 

interest rate risk, credit risk, use of derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess 

liquidity.	

	 i.	 Credit risk

	�	�  Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and credit exposures to customers including outstanding 

receivables with customers.

	 Credit risk management

	� Credit risk is managed on a wholistic basis. For banks and financial institutions, only high rated banks/institutions are accepted.

	� For other financial assets, the Company assesses and manages credit risk based on external credit rating system. The finance function 

under the guidance of the board assess the credit rating system. Credit rating is performed for each class of financial instruments with 

different characteristics. The company assigns the following credit ratings to each class of financial assets based on the assumptions, 

inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets.

	 VVL 1 :	 High-quality assets, negligible credit risk

	 VL 2 :	 Quality assets, low credit risk

	 VL 3 :	 Standard assets, moderate credit risk

	 VL 4 :	 Substandard assets, relatively high credit risk

	 VL 5 :	 Low quality assets, very high credit risk

	 VL 6 :	  Doubtful assets, credit-impaired

	� The company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant increase in 

credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in credit risk, the 

company compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of initial 

recognition. It considers available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the following indicators are 

included.

-	 Internal credit rating assessment		

-	 External credit rating (as far as available)		
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-	� Actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause a significant 

change to the borrower’s ability to meet its obligations		

-	� Macroeconomic information (such as regulatory changes, market interest rate or growth rates) is incorporated as part of the internal 

rating model.	

	� In general, it is presumed that credit risk has significantly increased since initial recognition if the payments are more than 30 days past 

due.		

	� A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 180 days of when they fall due. This 

definition of default is determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors.

	� A default on a financial asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments within 180 days of when they fall due. This 

definition of default is determined by considering the business environment in which entity operates and other macro-economic factors

Provision for expected credit losses
The company provides for expected credit loss based on the following:	

Internal 
rating

Category Description of Category

Basis of recognition of  
expected credit loss provision

Loans and security 
deposits

Trade 
receivables

VL 1 High-quality assets, 

negligible credit risk

Assets where the counter-party has strong capacity to meet the 

obligations and where risk of default is negligible or nil

12-month expected  

credit losses

Life-time 

expected  

credit losses 

(simplified 

approach)

VL 2 Quality assets, low 

credit risk

Assets where there is low risk of default and where the counter-

party has sufficient capacity to meet the obligations and where 

there has been low frequency of defaults in the past
VL 3 Standard assets, 

moderate credit risk

Assets where the probability of default is considered moderate, 

counter-party where the capacity to meet the obligations is not 

strong
VL 4 Substandard assets, 

relatively high credit 

risk

Assets where there has been a significant increase in credit risk 

since initial recognition. Assets where the payments are more 

than 30 days past due

Life-time expected  

credit losses

VL 5 Low quality assets, 

very high credit risk

Assets where there is a high probability of default. In general, 

assets where contractual payments are more than 60 days past due 

are categorised as low quality assets. Also includes assets where 

the credit risk of counter-party has increased significantly though 

payments may not be more than 60 days past due
VL 6 Doubtful assets, 

credit-impaired

Assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation 

of recovery, such as a debtor declaring bankruptcy or failing to 

engage in a repayment plan with the Company. The Company 

categorises a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor 

fails to make contractual payments greater than 365 days past 

due. Where loans or receivables have been written off, the 

group continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to 

recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these 

are recognised in profit or loss.

Assets being written off
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(a)	 Expected credit loss for security deposits

	 31.03.2025

 
Particulars

Internal 
credit 
rating

 Estimated 
gross 

carrying 
amount at 

default 

 Expected 
probability 
of default 

 Expected 
credit 
losses 

 Carrying 
amount 
net of 

impairment 
provision 

Loss allowance 
measured at 12 
month expected 
credit losses

Financial assets for which 
credit risk has not increased 
significantly since initial 
recognition

VL1  - 0.00%  -    -   

31.03.2024

 
Particulars

Internal 
credit 
rating

 Estimated 
gross carrying 

amount at 
default 

 Expected 
probability of 

default 

 Expected 
credit losses 

 Carrying 
amount net of 
impairment  

Loss allowance 
measured at 12 
month expected 
credit losses

Financial assets for which 
credit risk has not increased 
significantly since initial 
recognition

VL1  - 0.00%  -    -   

(b) Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified approach:

	 The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and expected credit loss for trade receivables 

	 31.03.2025

Particulars  Gross carrying  
amount 

Expected 
loss rate 

 Expected 
credit losses 

 Provision carried 
in books * 

Current

1-180 days past due  0.00  -    -    -   

181-365 days past due  -  -    -    -   

More than 365 days past due  -  -    -    - 

Total  0.00  -    -    - 

	 31.03.2024

Particulars  Gross carrying 
amount 

 Expected loss rate  Expected credit 
losses 

 Provision carried in 
books * 

Current

1-180 days past due  18.68  -    -    -   

181-365 days past due  -  -    -    - 

More than 365 days past due  -    -    -    -   

Total  18.68  -    -    - 

	 *	 Provision carried in books include provision made on specific identification.

(` in Lakhs)
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iii.	  Liquidity risk

	� Liquid assets consist of cash and cash equivalents. With the investment of liquid assets, banks are selected very carefully and diversified 

in accordance with a limit system. In the past years, the limit methodology was continuously enhanced to counteract the decline of the 

creditworthiness of the banking sector in the course of the financial crisis. In connection with investment decisions, priority is placed 

on the borrower’s very high creditworthiness and on balanced risk diversification. The limits and their utilizations are reassessed 

continuously. In this assessment, the Company also considers the credit risk assessment of its counterparties by the capital markets.  

In line with the Company’s risk policy, most liquid assets are held in investments with an external rating of “A” or better.

March, 31 2025

Contractual cash flows

Upto 3 
Months

 Over 3 months 
& upto 6 
months 

Over 6 
months & 

upto 1 year

Over 1 year & 
upto 3 years

 Over 3 years 
& upto 5 

years 

 Over 5 
years 

 Total 

A. Non-Derivative Financial 

Assets

Cash and cash 
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents  0.00  -    -    -    -    -    0.00 

Bank balances other than 

cash and cash equivalents

 5.51  -    -    -    -    -    5.51 

bank deposits with original 

maturity of more than 

three months but less than 

12 months

 -    -    98.00  98.00 

Trade receivables  0.00  -    -    -    -    -    0.00 

Investments  0.00  -    -    -    -    -    0.00 

Loans  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Other financial assets

Security deposits  -    -    -    -    -    -    -   

Non-derivative financial 
liabilities

Trade payables  0.00  -    -    -    -    -    0.00 

Total  5.51  -  98.00  -  -  -  103.51 

Movements in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables

The movement in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables and loans is as follows: 

Particulars  As at 31st March 2025  As at '31st March 2024 

Balance at beginning of the period  -    -   

Changes in loss allowance  -    -   

Balance at end of the period  -    -   
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March, 31 2023		  (` in lakhs)

Particulars Contractual cash flows

Upto 3 
Months

 Over 3 
months 
& upto 6 
months 

Over 6 
months & 

upto 1 year

Over 1 year 
& upto 3 

years

 Over 3 
years & upto 

5 years 

 Over 5 
years 

 Total 

A. Non-Derivative Financial 
Assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents  0.00  -    -    -    -    -    0.00 

Bank balances other than cash 

and cash equivalents

 1.89  -    -    -    -    -    1.89 

Trade receivables  18.68  -    -    -    -    -    18.68 

Investments  111.10  -    -    -    -    -    111.10 

Loans  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Other financial assets

Security deposits  -    -    -    -    -    -   

Non-derivative financial 

liabilities

Trade payables  27.23  -    -    -    -    -    27.23 

Total  158.91  -    -    -    -    -    158.91 

iv.	 Market risk

	� Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices – such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices – will affect the 

Company’s income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and 

control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

	� The Company does not have any derivatives hence there are no market risks.

	 Interest rate risk

	� The Company adopts a policy of ensuring that between 80 and 90% of its interest rate risk exposure is at a fixed rate. This is achieved 

partly by entering into fixed-rate instruments and partly by borrowing at a floating rate and using interest rate swaps as hedges of the 

variability in cash flows attributable to interest rate risk.
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NOTE: 26 LEASES
	 Leases as lessee

	 i.	 Future minimum lease payments*

		  As at year end, the future minimum lease payments to be made under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

(` in lakhs)

Particulars 2024-25  2023-24 

Payable within one year  -    -   

Payable between one and five years  -    -   

Payable after five years  -    -   

Total  -    -   

 
ii.	 Amount recognized in profit or loss

2024-25  2023-24 

Lease expense - Minimum lease payments  -    1.38 

Total  -    1.38 

 
NOTE 27 DUES TO MICRO, SMALL AND MEDIUM ENTERPRISES
		  �There are no amounts due to small scale industries in terms of “The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.

	 Exposure to interest rate risk

	 The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments as reported to management is as follows.

Particulars  As at  
31st March 2025 

 As at 
31st March 2024 

Fixed rate instruments

Financial assets  -    -   

Financial liabilities  -    -   
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NOTE: 28  DISCLOSURES IN ACCORDANCE WITH IND AS 24 - RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Related Party Disclosures

Holding Company 

Sundaram Finance Limited

Fellow Subsidiaries 

Sundaram Asset Management Company Limited 

Sundaram Asset Management Singapore Pte Limited 

Sundaram Alternate Assets Limited 

Sundaram Trustee Company Limited 

Sundaram Finance Holdings Limited (Till 26th March, 2024) 

Sundaram Business Services Limited (Till 26th March, 2024) 

Sundaram Home Finance Limited 

LGF Services Limited 

Sundaram Finance Employee Welfare Trust

Joint Ventures of Holding Company 

Royal Sundaram General Insurance Company Limited

Key Management Personnel 

Mr. T S Sritharan - Managing Director (Till 26th March, 2024) 

Mr. C M Loganathan - Managing Director (from 27th March, 2024 till 10th Dec, 2024) 

 Mr. S. Lakshminarasimhan - Chief Financial Officer (till 10th Dec, 2024) 

Ms. Sri Lakshmi Balachandran - Company Secretary (from 26th March, 2024 till 10th Dec, 2024) 

Mr R.S.Raghunathan – Director (W.e.f. 26th march, 2024) 

Mr Ajith Kumar R- Director (W.e.f. 26th march, 2024)
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The nature and volume of transactions of the company during the year, with the above related parties are as follows:

(` in lakhs) 

Nature of Transactions
 Holding  
Company  

 Fellow  
Subsidiaries 

 Key Management 
Personnel / Entity in 

which Director  
is interested 

 2024-25  2023-24  2024-25  2023-24  2024-25  2023-24 
INCOME FROM OPERATIONS
Sundaram Asset Management Company Limited  -    94.68 

Sale of Assets
Sundaram Asset Management Company Limited  0.29  -   

EXPENSE
Rent
Sundaram Asset Management Company Limited  -    1.10 

Payroll
Sundaram Finance Holdings Limited  -    0.08 

Remuneration of Key Managerial Personnel
 Mr. S. Lakshminarasimhan - Chief Financial Officer  

(till 10th Dec, 2024)

 -    35.82 

Assets
Sundry Debtors
Sundaram Asset Management Company Limited  -    18.68 

LIABILITIES
Equity Shares
Sundaram Finance Limited  150.30  4,500.30 

Payables
Sundaram Asset Management Company Limited  -    27.23 

No amounts payable to or recievable from related parties has been written off / written back during the year.

All the outstanding balances (payables or receivables) with related parties are unsecured.
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NOTE: 29 ADDITIONAL REGULATORY INFORMATION

(i)	 The Company does not have any Immovable Properties not held in its name.

(ii)	 The Company does not have any investment property.

(iii)	 The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) or intangible assets.

(iv)	� The company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans to promoters, Directors, KMPs and related parties (as defined 

under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person, either repayable on demand or without specifying any 

terms or period of repayment except inter company corporate deposit issued to Sundaram asset managment company limited.

(v)	� The Company does not have any Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP).

(vi)	 The Company does not have any Intangible Assets under Development.

(vii)	� There have been no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami 

Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and rules made thereunder.

(viii)	� The Company does not have borrowings from banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets.

(ix)	� The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.		

(x)	� The company has not had any transactions with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of 

Companies Act, 1956.

(xi)	� There are no charges or satisfactions yet to be registered with the Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period.

(xii) 	� The company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with the Companies 

(Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

(xiii)	� There has been no Scheme of Arrangements approved by the Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 of the Companies 

Act, 2013. However, during the previous year, a Scheme of Arrangement was approved by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, 

vide Order dated 04th October, 2023 in terms of Sections 230 to 237 of the Companies Act, 2013, and the effect of the Scheme of 

Arrangement was accounted for in the books of account of the Company in accordance with the Scheme and in accordance with the 

accounting standards.

(xiv)	 Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

	� No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 

funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”) with the understanding, 

whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company 

(Ultimate Beneficiaries). The Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding Party) with the understanding that the 

Company shall whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company 

(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee,security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(xv)	� Undisclosed Income:

	� No tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961) have been received during the year and hence, there have been no 

transactions not recorded in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year. There has also 

not been any previously unrecorded income or related assets.

(xvi)	� The Company is not covered under the provisions of Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(xvii)	� The Company has neither traded nor invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.
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NOTE: 30 RATIOS	
(` in lakhs) 

Particulars
Items included in 
the Numerator / 

Denominator

Ratio
Variation 

(%)
Remark 

2024-25 2023-24

(a) Current ratio** Current Assets/ Current 

Liabilities

72.64% 3.10% 2246.62% This variance has arisen because of the 

reduction in the liabilities of the Company 

during the year.

(b) Debt-Equity ratio Total Outside Debt/Equity 

Share Holder's Funds

NA NA NA

(c) �Debt Service 

Coverage ratio

Earnings Available for 

Debt services/ Interest + 

Installments

NA NA NA

(d) �Return on Equity 

ratio

Net Profit After Taxes / 

Equity Shareholder's Funds

2.84% 25.91% -89.05% Subsequent to the demerger of the 

Company in the previous year, the Company 

did not have any significant operations. 

Hence, these variances have arisen.

(e) �Inventory turnover 

ratio

Cost of Goods Sold / 

Average Inventory

NA NA NA

(f) �Trade Receivables 

turnover ratio

Net Sales/ Average 

Receivables

0.00% 3.73% -100.00% Subsequent to the demerger of the Company 

in the previous year, the Company did not 

have any significant operations. Hence, these 

variances have arisen.

(g) �Trade payables 

turnover ratio

Net Purchases / Average 

Payables

NA NA NA

(h) �Net capital 

turnover ratio

Revenue from Operations / 

Capital Employed

0.00% 86.29% -100.00% Subsequent to the demerger of the Company 

in the previous year, the Company did not 

have any significant operations. Hence, these 

variances have arisen.
(i) Net profit ratio Net Profit After Taxes / 

Revenue from Operations

0% 30% -100.00%

(j) �Return on Capital 

employed

Earnings before Interest & 

Taxes/ Capital Employed

1.59% 24.06% -93.39%

(k) �Return on 

investment

Net Profit After Taxes / 

Capital Employed

2.84% 25.91% -89.05%
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NOTE: 31. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

1.	 Contingent Liabilities

	 A.	 Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts

Particulars 31-03-2025 31-03-2024

Income tax Matters  -    -   

Goods and Services Tax matters  11.09  -   

The claims against the company under the Goods and Services Tax matter represents issues of ITC claimed under the CGST Act, 2017.These 

matters are pending before the relevant Appellate Authority. The management expects that its position will likely be upheld on ultimate resolution 

and will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s financial position and results of operations.

NOTE: 32. CAPITAL REDUCTION:

In order to re-align the relation between capital & assets, to appropriately and fairly reflect the assets & liabilities of the Company in its books of 

accounts, and for better presentation of the financial position of the Company, the Board of Directors had decided to write off the accumulated 

losses against reduction in the paid up share capital of the Company in accordance with section 66 of the Companies Act, 2013, read with 

the National Company Law Tribunal (Procedure for Reduction of Share Capital of Company) Rules, 2016 and other applicable provisions.

Consequently, the Board of Directors thought it fit to reduce the Equity Share Capital from INR 45,00,30,000 /- (Indian Rupees 

Forty Five Crores and Thirty Thousand only) being 4,50,03,000 (Four Crores Fifty Lakhs and Three Thousand) equity shares of 

INR 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten only) each fully paid up to INR 1,50,30,000 /- (Indian Rupees One Crores Fifty Lakh and Thirty 

Thousand only) being 15,03,000 (Fifteen Lakhs Three Thousand) equity shares of INR 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten only) each fully 

paid up. The reduced share capital of INR 43,50,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Forty-Three Crores Fifty Lakhs only) being 4,35,00,000  

(Four Crores Thirty- Five Lakhs) shares of INR 10/- (Indian Rupees Ten only) each shall be adjusted against the negative balance of retained 

earnings (accumulated losses) of the Company to the extent of INR 43,50,00,000/- (Indian Rupees Forty-Three Crores Fifty Lakhs only).  In 

this light, the Company had filed a petition before the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, seeking its approval / Order for the same.

During the current year, upon the Order passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal allowing such Capital Reduction, the Company 

has written off the accumulated losses, against its Share Capital, in the abovementioned manner, resulting in the reduced Share Capital and 

Accumulated Losses as reflected in the Financial Statements.”	 				  

NOTE: 33. �PREVIOUS YEAR FIGURES HAVE BEEN REGROUPED / RECLASSIFIED WHEREVER NECESSARY TO CONFORM 
TO THE CURRENT YEAR’S PRESENTATION.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report on even date attached 
For N.C. Rajagopal & Co., 
Chartered Accountants 
FRN 003398S  

V. Chandrasekaran 
Partner 
Membership No.024844 
Place: Chennai
Date: 6th May 2025

R S Raghunathan 		    Ajith Kumar
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